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ABOUT US

The Pakistan Microfinance Network - PMN is an association of
retail microfinance providers and is registered under Section 42
of the Companies Ordinance, comprised of Microfinance Banks
- MFBs and Non-Bank Microfinance Companies — NBMFCs,
based out of Islamabad, Pakistan. The Network's strength today
stands at 46 retail microfinance providers (MFPs) that
collectively account for over 99% of the total microfinance
outreach in Pakistan.PMNs vision is to extend the frontiers of
formal financial services to all, and its mission is to support the
financial sector, especially retail financial service providers, to
enhance their scale, quality, diversity, and sustainability in order
to achieve inclusive financial services. Over the years, PMN has
emerged as an information hub publishing various reports, and
papers and conducting large-scale qualitative and quantitative
research studies with partners in the industry on Microfinance,
Financial Inclusion, Financial literacy, Digital Microfinance,
insurance, Product Development etc. At PMN, our success over
the years has placed us in a position with access to all the
microfinance institutions and to develop in-depth institutional
learning and expertise.




POSITIONED FOR
A BRIGHT FUTURE

As we embark on a new phase of growth while tackling
the recent economic challenges faced by the country, |
am confident that PMN is superbly positioned to seize
emerging opportunities by harnessing our strengths. Our
unwavering commitment is to persistently execute our
Business Strategy, enhance public outreach, and
diligently work towards fostering a more sustainable
Network for our members. Backed by effective
governance, robust internal controls, and a dedicated
management team, we are not just well-prepared but
have also set ambitious benchmarks aligned with our
overall Mission and Vision.

| am proud to work with such a distinguished and
dedicated Board, as we continue to oversee the work of
PMN’s management and staff towards meeting key
objectives.

Regards,
Ghalib Nishtar
Chairperson Board of Directors



BUILDING
BRAND EQUITY

Since its inception, PMN has made great strides to stand
out in the local and global landscape. As the
representative body of the microfinance sector in
Pakistan, it has made strong linkages locally and globally
and has formed crucial strategic alliances with leading
organizations in the field of financial inclusion. They
maintain a close relationship with donors working in this
field such as Karandaaz Pakistan, The World Bank (WB),
ADB JIICA, FCDO, KfW and IFC. Within Pakistan, PMN is a
consistent presence on all important forums and
committees relating to microfinance and financial
inclusion. PMN also prides itself on its relationships at the
policy level with organizations like the State Bank of
Pakistan, SECP, Ministry of Finance and the Planning
Commission. All this is largely thanks to the commitment
and support of PMN's members, who generously
contribute to the Network's work in terms of their time,
information and data, and intellectual capital.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

| would like to extend my sincerest thanks to the CEO of PMN and the entire

management team for their support and hard work that has enabled us to grow

positively. | also extend my gratitude to my fellow directors for their valuable

contributions to the Network. Last but not least, | would like to show appreciation

to our regulators (SECP & SBP) for their constant support in creating an enabling

environment for the Microfinance Industry.






POSITIONED FOR
A BRIGHT FUTURE

In this dawn of a new growth cycle, | believe that PMN is
well-positioned to take full advantage of new opportunities by
leveraging on our strengths. We will continue to focus on the
execution of our Business Strategy, and public outreach and strive
towards a more sustainable Network for our members. With good
governance, strong internal controls, and dedicated management,
we are well-positioned and have set the bar high.

STRATEGY FOR
2023

In 2023, the Pakistan Microfinance Network (PMN) is committed to
strengthening its efforts to tackle the challenges posed by Covid-19 and
the devastating floods that have recently plagued large parts of the
country. PMN plans to engage with policymakers and regulators to
develop effective strategies to address these challenges. Additionally,
PMN is keenly aware of the impact of climate change on Pakistan and
aims to develop a medium- and long-term disaster risk strategy for the
microfinance industry.

In the field of digitization, PMN plans to establish its Digital Services
Platform and encourage shareholders to transform Munsalik into a
high-quality shared platform for the microfinance industry. Building on its
investments in the Center of Excellence initiative and credit bureau, PMN
will prioritize addressing HR and credit risk-related issues in the sector.



Moreover, PMN aims to enhance its research capabilities to meet the sector's needs
and increase its networking and partnerships with other global players. With a vision
to be at the forefront of the latest research and development, PMN will focus on
developing partnerships, outreach, and advocacy for a more sustainable microfinance
industry.

PMN recognizes the importance of staying ahead of the curve and responding
effectively to the changing needs of the microfinance industry. Therefore, PMN is
committed to prioritizing its research and development initiatives and forging new
partnerships to achieve its objectives. With these efforts, PMN hopes to contribute
significantly to the growth and sustainability of the microfinance industry in Pakistan.



HIGHLIGHTS OF RESEARCH
PROJECTS FROM
JAN 2022- DEC 2022

SAFCO BRIEF

PMN explores the transformational journey of SAFCO Support Foundation
(SSF) from a non-profit to a for-profit entity. Based in Sanghar, Sindh, SSF
remains a leading NGO for welfare and poverty reduction in rural Sindh.
However, last year, SSF became the sole shareholder of SAFCO Microfinance
Company (SMC), a for-profit Microfinance Institute. PMN explores the
reasons, challenges, and transformational journey with insights from the
company management and the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SECP). This transformation is the first of its kind in the industry.




COVID MICROFINANCE INDUSTRY
IMPACT STUDY PROPOSAL

Numerous academic and industry research highlights the impacts of Covid-19 on
microfinance borrowers. The State Bank (SBP) and SECP also notified of various
measures to protect the borrowers. However, all those studies were conducted
during the Covid-19 period. Discussions of this impact after the Covid-19 period is
believed to have different results: that microfinance and small-scale borrowers
were not as badly hit as previously thought. This proposal will study the impact of
Covid-19 on microfinance borrowers in South Asia following different regulatory
relaxations given to microfinance borrowers over time.

GARMENT FACTORY WORKERS' DIARY

A project by MFO with the objectives of exploring the financial well-being and
working conditions of factory workers. This is a tracking project, that monitors the
responses of participants weekly. Under this project, we collect the data with the
help of a Survey firm. This exercise was carried out in four factories, which are
located in Lahore and Faisalabad. The total sample size is 170 in which both
genders are interviewed. The project is a total of 19 weeks of exercise, currently, we
are done with Week 17th.







1. ANNUAL MICROFINANCE
CONFERENCE - AMC 6

Annual Microfinance Conference successfully and has established
its brand to hold regular annual events where the microfinance and
financial inclusion industry comes together along with
policymakers, regulators, donors and investors and share their
ideas, thoughts, challenges, and plans. PMN convened its Sixth
Annual Microfinance Conference AMC-6 with the theme “20 Years
of Excellence: Creating Resilience & Enabling Rehabilitation” on
October 5th- 7th, 2021 at Serena Hotel, Islamabad.

The primary objective of this conference was to unveil to the
audience the performance, work, benefits, and achievement of the
microfinance sector in the last 20 years and the crucial role it has
played in financial inclusion, poverty reduction, and its support to
achieve economic objectives of sustainable development of the
local community and the country overall. Secondly, the objective
was also to initiate a dialogue for concerted efforts among all
relevant stakeholders, to identify the possible bottlenecks that exist
in the industry that can possibly hinder the financial inclusion
process, and propose ideas to overcome them.

Thirdly, the conference also brought to light the current flood crisis
in Pakistan, which has been hit by the worst flooding this monsoon
season that has affected millions of people.1in 7 people in Pakistan
were affected by the historic disaster. All four provinces have been
badly affected, killing more than 1200 people, with Balochistan and
Sindh being the hardest hit areas. The situation is even worse than
the devastating floods of 2010. Millions of people needed and were
provided with emergency food and humanitarian assistance.

Another purpose of this event was to provide a platform to all
stakeholders such as microfinance providers, financial service
providers involved in financial inclusion (like banks, digital financial
service providers, FinTechs, and insurance companies), donor
agencies, policymakers, regulators, development agencies,
multilateral companies, and government authorities and discuss
the ways to further broaden the horizons of the microfinance
industry. The conference provided opportunities and space for
creating collaborative links between Financial Service Providers,
Investors/Donors, Multi-lateral companies, and all other relevant
stakeholders, aiming at long-term sharing of knowledge and



discussions of highly current issues. Through this event, we addressed some of the
myths surrounding the industry and tried to unravel them for clarity at a larger
ecosystem level.

The main topics for the conference included:

Digital Finance & The
Fintech Eco-system

Financial Inclusion and Inclusion
of other marginalized segments
(youth, transgender, old age, race,
minorities etc.)

Low-cost Housing

Policy and regulatory
challenges

Esg / Climate Change

& Disaster Risk Facility Inclusive Insurance
For The Microfinance

Sector

2. PAKISTAN FINTECH NETWORK -
AGRITECH CONFERENCE -
"EMPOWERING FARMERS THROUGH AGRITECH"

In April 2022, the Pakistan Microfinance Network (PMN) and the Pakistan Fintech
Network (PFN) collaborated to hold a hybrid conference titled "Empowering Farmers
through Agritech" in Islamabad. The main objective of the conference was to identify
the challenges faced by agrotech companies and explore ways to form collaborations
between traditional agricultural value chain players and new agricultural
technological players. The event aimed to address the challenges involved in digitizing
the entire value chain and improving farmers' access to digital insurance and credit
facilities.

The conference was a significant step in initiating discussions and identifying
potential collaborative opportunities to digitize the agricultural value chain. The event
also aimed to enhance farmers' access to formal financial products and services,
improved cropping tools, and technology, and reduce information asymmetry.



The PMN and PFN recognized the importance of technology in transforming the
agricultural sector and empowering farmers. Through this collaboration, they aimed
to bring together key stakeholders to share their experiences and expertise and
collectively work towards improving the lives of farmers. The conference was a
starting point towards this goal and aimed to pave the way for more significant
initiatives in the future.

3. SAMN'’S SOUTH ASIA'S FINANCIAL
INCLUSION TRAINING (S-FIT)

The South Asia Micro-Entrepreneurs Network (SAMN) is a regional network
committed to enhancing capacity, financing, and regional dialogue in the
microfinance sector of South Asia. The governance of SAMN comprises leading apex
institutions from the countries in the region, along with the Agency for Technical
Cooperation and Development (ACTED). Additionally, SAMN collaborates with MFls,
investors, banks, and other key microfinance stakeholders to achieve its objectives.

In May 2022, Pakistan Microfinance Network (PMN), in collaboration with the South
Asian Micro-Entrepreneurs Network (SAMN), organized the South Asia's Financial
Inclusion Training (S-FIT) in Dubai. The S-FIT was a five-day training event that
brought together a diverse group of professionals from across the world,
representing microfinance banks, non-bank microfinance companies, donors,
regulators, investors, and the larger FinTech industry, under one roof.

The main aim of this event was to provide a platform for participants to engage in a
series of interactive and informative sessions. The training aimed to equip
participants with the latest knowledge and skills required to promote financial
inclusion in South Asia. The event also provided a unique opportunity for participants
to exchange ideas, best practices, and experiences, and to network with key
stakeholders from the microfinance industry.

Through this collaboration, SAMN and Pakistan Microfinance Network
demonstrated their commitment to promoting financial inclusion in South Asia. The
S-FIT event was a significant step towards achieving this goal, and it is expected to
pave the way for more initiatives in the future.

4. TRAINING PROGRAMMES:

PMNs Center of Excellence initiative was significantly impacted as it was not able to
provide the training services to the industry as it had been doing effectively in the
past. PMN successfully launched training on “Affordable Housing” in collaboration
with Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Ltd.



Pakistan Microfinance Network (PMN) under the banner of Center of Excellence
(CoE) in collaboration with the Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company (PMRC)
organized a three-day training program titled “Training on Affordable Housing”
which ran from 9th-11th March 2022 in Ramada Hotel, Lahore.

This training on affordable housing was organized to provide an in-depth
understanding and to develop the capacity building of the Microfinance
Providers — MFPs, House Finance Companies, and other financial institutions to
build mortgage loan portfolios. This training also sheds light on the risks faced by
the housing sector and the opportunities that exist to capture growth and
profitability.

To equip the microfinance industry with the right tools special sessions were
included in the program to make it more comprehensive. This made it a unique
opportunity for all the participants to Connect, and Collaborate with practitioners
as well as their peers, who shared the same interests and concerns, and to learn
from the industry leaders.

5. ROUND TABLE SESSIONS

PMN successfully organized a set of round table sessions, the first roundtable
was on the topic “Promoting Commercial Lending to MFPs” in Karachi on 6th
July 2022, which was attended by MFBs, MFIs, and the leading Commercial
Banks of the country, through this event, PMN aimed to create better awareness
about the dynamics of the microfinance industry for commercial banks to
encourage them to lend to the industry. In this dialogue, queries and concerns
related to governance, financial sustainability of microfinance players, industry
infrastructure, post covid operations, clientage and risk management were
addressed.

The second roundtable was on the topic “Succession Planning Not for Profit —
NBMFCs” at Ramada Hotel Lahore on 29th September 2022. The purpose of
holding this round table session was to see what policies and changes the
microfinance providers in the country have adopted for succession planning in
their organizations. emphasizing the point that how crucial it is to have the right
leaders in place should a change happen quickly. And by failing to create an
orderly plan for succession, a company may not get a second chance if it doesn't
adapt immediately after a key player leaves the company or passes away.

6. BOOTCAMP FOR FINANCE PROFESSIONALS:

PMN under its banner successfully organized a three-day Bootcamp for Finance
Professionals from 6th — 8th December 2022 at Beach Luxury Hotel Karachi. This
training for Finance Professionals was organized to provide senior finance
professionals whose next career step is CFO, or current CFOs who want to



sharpen their strategic and leadership skills. The Program was designed to help
develop CFOs and aspiring CFOs as a trusted, valued, and comprehensive
“go-to” resource for personal career development and success as the CFO role
evolves to address new demands.

To equip the CFOs with the right tools special sessions were included in the
program to make it more comprehensive. This was a unique opportunity for all
the participants to Connect, and Collaborate with practitioners as well as with
their peers, who share the same interests and concerns, and to Learn from the
industry leaders.

The Bootcamp for Finance Professionals was designed to help financial leaders
take their next career step. A comprehensive curriculum was designed and
driven by highly qualified and the latest industry research and insights. This
program helped participants drive financial frameworks that embrace global
business strategies while preparing them to manage investors, analysts, and
the board to optimize business efficiency.

7. 11th Global Islamic Microfinance Forum - GIMF:

Pakistan Microfinance Network formed an alliance with AlHuda CIBE, Islamic
Microfinance Network, and Wings Media to Promote Islamic Finance and
Microfinance globally. The Alliance members are an established name in the
microfinance & financial inclusion sector with a vision to increase the outreach
of financial services, especially with the unserved and marginalized segment.
The Alliance members have a focus on Research, Development, Capacity
Building, Product Development, and Publications.

The Alliance collaborated and organized the “11th Global Islamic Microfinance
Forum - GIMF"” which was scheduled from November 2Ist to November 22nd,
2022, with two days Post Event Workshop on “Practical Aspects of Islamic Micro,
Agriculture & Rural Finance and One Day Field Visit & City Tour.

GIMF is an annual apex gathering of Islamic (Micro)finance, Rural Finance,
funder/ donor agencies, multilateral organizations, and other allied sectors of
Microfinance to discuss and address the challenges around financial inclusion
and poverty reduction.

The GIMF featured conversations, fireside chats, policy dialogue, power talks,
debates, and panel discussions on Islamic microfinance's future development &
potential, funding sources, building an enabling environment for inclusive
Islamic finance, and various supportive elements of Islamic financing. There
were around 200 international professionals and experts including
representatives from Islamic finance providers, microfinance providers,
regulators, policymakers, donors, investors, commmercial banks, digital financial
players, and government authorities that participated in this event.
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sixth Floor, State Life Building, Blue Area
Islamabad, Pakistan

Telephone 92 (51) 282 3558, Fax 92 (51) 282 2671

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Pakistan Microfinance Network
Report on the Audit of tihe Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pakistan Microfinance
Network (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the income and expenditure statement, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and reserves, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, income and expenditure statement,
statement of comprehénsive income, the statement of changes in funds and
reserves and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act 2017, (XIX of 2017)
in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the surplus and other
comprehensive income, the changes in funds and reserves and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standard Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficie ‘t and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

HPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,, a Parl
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Responsibilities of Man'agement and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements ‘

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial| statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to thosé risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement result];g from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve < llusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedl.ilres that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o
continue as a going concern.

= FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
|

|
a) proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)

b) the statement of financial position, the income and expenditure statement, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and
reserves and the statement of cashflows together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and
are in agreement with the books of account and returns;
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¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
year were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
(XVIII of 1980)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Ubbaid Ullah.

King, Vageer wali L L

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: 30 August 2023

UDIN: AR202210240WftqBowl5




Pakistan Microfinance Network

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Long term loans
Long term investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Consultancy fees receivable
Loans and advances
Deposits and short term prepayments
Training and other receivables
Receivaople from subsidiary
Short term investments

Bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

FUNDS AND RESERVES
Unrestricted funds
Endowment fund

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred grants
Long term loan
Lease liability

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term loan
Current portion of lease liability
Short Term Borrowings
Deferred granis
Accrued and other liabilities

TOTAL FUNDS, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

bt o p [ R =

10
11
12

13
14

15
16
17

16
17
18
19
20

21

2022 2021

---------- Rupees----—------
10,643,516 16,306,268
1,287,353 2,674,323
- 245,444
308,936,801 308,836,801
320,867,670 328,062,836
3,845,530 2,100,832
11,911,184 3,189,123
3,036,671 4,527,731
31,185,364 28,977,768
57,390,973 30,808,193
10,000,000 22,003,000
2,477,278 4,055,711
119,847,000 96,662,359
440,714,670 424,725,185
329,020,945 320,877,309
70,485,728 70,485,728
399,506,673 391,368,037
11,962 1,330,628
- 531,146
- 4,407,806
11,962 6,269,580
- 10,303,903
4,332,547 3,235,842

8,901,265 -

540,717 944,673
27,421,506 12,608,160
41,196,035 27,092,578
440,714,670 424,725,195

The annexed notes from 1 1o 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

.,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

A L
<= Ao () SN

DIRECTOR



Pakistan Microfinance Network

Income and Expenditure Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

INCOME

Grant income

Members' contributions

Institutional contributions

Income from trainings ;
Income from research projects / consultancy
Income from sponsorships

Facilitation fee income

Other income

EXPENDITURE
Governance and management
Programme costs
Surplus from operations ‘
Finance iIncome
Finance costs
Net finance income
Net (impairment loss) / reversal of impairment
loss gain on receivables

Taxation

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

30

w

32
33

3.8

2022 2021
---------- Rupees----------
1,493,420 241,101,673
18,425,000 18,760,000
11,625,000 26,000,000
7,525,572 -
6,132,132 11,631,244
15,764,827 12,506,034
11,978,763 19,374,877
5,492,113 1,497,924
78,436,827 330,871,752
(26,885,403) (31,618,116)
(39,606,840) (62,265,011)
(66,492,243) (93,883,127)
11,944,584 236,988,625
1,670,554 3,125,120
(1,511,242) (2,140,553)
159,312 984,567
(3,960,260) (316,101)
(3,800,948) 668,466
8,143,636 237,657,091

A

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR




Pakistan Microfinance Network
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Rupees
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 8,143,636 237,657,087
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR TiHE YEAR 8,143,636 237,657,091 *\k
The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements. \a

Q/@M@M““

bH!EF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR




Pakistan Microfinance Network

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2027
Note —eemieee-m-RUp@ES --sennneas -
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Surplus for the year 8,143,636 237,657,081
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 4 5,829,306 5,935,808
Amoriization 5 1,286,970 1,637,086
Net Impairment loss on receivables 3,960,260 316,101
Gain on disposal of aperating fixed assets (48,591) (18,082)
Amortization of deferred capital grant 15.1 (1,493,420) (1,618,702)
Amortization of deferred grant 22 - (225,878,583)
Finance costs 33 1,511,242 2,140,553
Finance income 32 (1,670,554) (3,125,120}
9,375,213 (220,610,908)
Changes in:
Consultancy fees receivable (3,104,988) 4,247,130
Loans and advances (8,885,165) (2,013,369)
Deposits and short-term prepayments 1,491,060 (937,913
Grant receivable - 44,473,207
Training and other recevables {3,807,565) (10,546,378
Receivable from subsidiary (26,582,780) (30,808,193
Accrued and other liabilities 14,813,346 (21,225,457}
(26,076,092) (16,810,967)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (8,557,243) 235,216
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acauisition of property and equipment
including capital work in progress (166,554) (257,5817)
Agquisition of intangibles - including capital work in progress " {12,956,488)
Proceeds from disposal of operaung fixed assets 48,591 62,000
Long term investmant in subsidiary - (80,100,000
Shor term investments redeemed 12,003,000 §,900,909
Long term loans 1ssued - {500,000
Long term loans recovered 408,549 376,386
Interest received 1,670,554 3,125,120
Net cash{ used in) / generated from investing activities 13,964,140 (80,250,564)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Deterred grants - 69,090,085
Long term loans received - B
Running finance facility availed 8,901,265 -
Interest paid on running finance (245,008) -
Long term loens repaid (11,186,998) (11,516,433}
Repayment of lease liability (4,454,591) (5,736.873)
Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities (6,985,330) 51,836,688
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year {1,578,433) (28,178,659)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,055,711 32,234,370
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 14 2,477,278 4,085,711

The annexad notes from 1 1o 42 form an integral part of these financial sta‘-.emen‘;ig F :4\.\
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Pakistan Microfinance Network
Statement of Changes in Funds and Reserves
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Balance as at 01 January 2021

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2021
Balance as at 01 January 2022

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022

Funds and Reserves

Unrestricted

Endowment

i fund el
Rupees

83,220,218 70,485,728 153,705,946
237,657,091 - 237,657,091
237,657,091 237,657,091
320,877,309 70,485,728 381,363,037
320,877,309 70,485,728 391,363,037
8,143,636 - 8,143,636
8,143,636 - 8,143,636
329,020,945 70,485,728 399,506,673

The annexed notes from 1 1o 42 form an integral part of these financial statements. f)ﬂ,‘ Ei
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Pakistan Micl;ofinance Network

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 202

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIOITS

1.1

12

Pakistan Microfinance Network {the Company), was incorporated on April 24, 2001,
under section 42 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance} (repealed on
promulgation of the Companies Act 2017 w.e.f. 30 May 2017} as a guarantee limited
company. The mission of the Company is to enhance the scale, guality, diversity and
sustainability of retail Microfinarice Institutions (MFIs) in Pakistan. The Company
pursues this mission through the aghievement of the following three primary objectives:

|.  Enhancing the capacity of retail MFls;
ll.  Establishing the use of |performance measures and promating financial
transparency in retail MFls] and
. Creating an enabling policyjenvironment for retail MFIs.
The registered office of the Company is situated at 1st Floor, 85-East, Kamran Centre,
Blue Area, Islamabad.

License issued to the Company upder section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017 expired
on 10 August 2020. in the previ?us year the Company has filed for renewal of the
license to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP) which was
forwarded by SECP to the Minisnly of Interior for obtaining necessary approval before
grant of license, however, Securittes and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP”)
vide notitication no. S.R.0 1574(1)/2021 dated 29 November 2021, amended the
Association with Charitable and Not for Profit Objects Regulations, 2018 ("the
Regulations”} whereby a license @nce granted by the commissicn under section 42 of
the Companies Act, 2017 is no more required to be renewed and the original license
granted by the SECP remains valig.

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE & BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable|in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

- International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS Standards), issued by the
International Accounting| Standards Board (IASB} as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017,

- Accounting Standard for Not for Profit Organizations {NPOs} issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accpuntants of Pakistan, as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017; and

- Provistons of, and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

the IFRS Standards or the Accpunting Standard for NPOs, the provisions of and

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from
directives issued under the Com};nies Act, 2017 have been followed. \/\“\

(A%



Pakistan Microfinance Network

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 Basis of measurement and preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under historical cost
convention except for lease liability which is measured at present value.

These are separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in
subsidiary and associate are accoupted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather
than on the basis of reported results. Consolidated financia! statements are prepared
separately.

2.3 Functional and presentation currTncy
These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's
functional currency i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the

Company operates,

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historid experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are helieved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions
1o accounting estimates are recogn|zed in the period in which the estimate is revised and
in any future periods affected.

In the process of applying the Corhpany’s accounting policies, management has made
the following estimates and judgments, which are significant to the financial statements:

Note 3.1 - useful lives, reassessed values, residual values and depreciation method of
property and equipment

Note 3.2 - useful lives, reassessed values, residual values and amortization method of
intangible assets

Note 3.6 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key
assumptions about the likelihood apd magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Note 3.8 - recognition of tax IiabilitiTs and assets and estimation of income tax provisions
Note 3.10 - measurement of ECL dllowance for receivables
Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's [accounting policies and disclosures require the
measurement of fair value, both for financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. ﬁ




Pakistan Microfinance Network

Notes to the Financial Statement:
For the year ended 31 December 2022

The Company has an established ¢

gntrol framework with respect to the measurement

of fair values. Management has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair

value measurements, including Lev

Management regularly reviews

el 3 fair values.

significant unobservable inputs and valuation

adjustments. I third party informatign, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used
to measure fair values, then the magagement assesses the evidence obtained from the
third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of
the approved accounting standards ds applicable in Pakistan, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which the valuatigns should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of
observable data as far as possible.

an asset or a liability, the Company uses market
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a

fair value hierarchy bhased on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: guoted p
assets or

fices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical
iabilities.

Level 2: nputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, which are
observable and available for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.

2. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices}.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable and available market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure thef fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different

levels of the fair value hierarchy, t

hen the fair value measurement is categorized in its

entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end
of the reporting period during whigh the change has occurred.

2.5 Standards, interpretations

nd amendments to appi'oved accounting

standards that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS Standards) as notified
under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023:

- Classification of liabilities as cur
2020) apply retrospectively for
2024 (as deferred vide amendm
permitted. These amendments
when a liability is classified as ¢

* as 'current’. The standard also 3

ent or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 in January
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
snts to 1AS 1 in October 2022) with earlier application
in the standards have been added to further clarify
urrent. Convertible debt may need to be reclassified
mends the aspect of classification of liability as non-

N
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Pakistan Microfinance Network

Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

current by requiring the assessment of the entity's right at the end of the reporting
period to defer the settlement o# liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity's expectation and
discretion at the reporting date tg refinance or to reschedule payments on a long-term
basis are no longer relevant for the classification of a liability as current or non-current.
An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

- Non-current Liabilities with Covegnants (amendment to IAS 1 in October 2022} aims
to improve the information an entity provides when its right to defer settlement of a
liability for at least twelve months is subject to compliance with conditions. The
amendment is also intended ta address concerns about classifying such a liability as
current or non-current. Only coyenants with which a company must comply on or
before the reporting date afteqt the classification of a liability as current or non-
current. Covenants with which the company must comply after the reporting date
{i.e. future covenants) do not affect a liability's classification at that date. However,
when non-current liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies will now need
to disclose information to help lisers understand the risk that those liabilities could
become repayable within 12 menths after the reporting date. The amendments apply
retrospectively for annual reportihg periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
earlier application permitted. [These amendments atso specify the transition
requirements for companies that may have early-adopted the previously issued but
not yet effective 2020 amendments to |AS 1 {as referred above).

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2) - the Board has issued amendments on the application of materiality to
disclosure of accounting poticies and to help companies provide useful accounting
policy disclosures. The key amepdrments to IAS 1 include:

requiring companies to disclese their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events
or conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not to be disclosed;
and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other
events or conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements

The Board also amended |FRS|Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two
additional examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
The amendments are effective [for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 “
January 2023 with earlier application permitted. \@




Pakistan Microfinance Netywork
Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 December 202

Definition of Accounting Estimataes (Amendments to IAS B) introduce a new definition
for accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial
statements that are subject to imeasurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify the relationship between| accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set
out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively
to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on

or after the beginning of the fi
applies the amendments.

Deferred Tax related to Assels
(Amendments to IAS 12) narrow
so that it does not apply to tf

st annual reporting period in which the company

and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
the scope of the initial recognition exemption {IRE}
ansactions that give rise to equal and offsetting

temporary differences. As a resuit, companies will need to recognize a deferred tax

asset and a deferred tax liabitity f
of a lease and a decommissiq
liabilities, the associated deferre
from the beginning of the earlies
etfect recognized as an adjustn
equity at that date. The amen

or temporary differences arising on initial recognition
ning provision. For leases and decommissioning
O tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognized
t comparative period presented, with any cumulative
nent to retained earnings or other components of
dments are effective for annual reporting periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leageback (amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022)
adds subseguent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions
that satisfy the requirements tao e accounted for as a sale. The amendmzant confirms
that on initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments when it
measures a lease ligbility arising from a sale-and-ieaseback transaction. After initial
recognition, the selier-lessee a'pplies the general requirements for subsequent
accounting of the lease liability such that it recognizes no gain or loss relating to the
right of use it retains. A seller-le l see may adopt different approaches that satisty the
new requirements on subsequent measurement. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with earlier application
permitted. Under IAS 8, a seller-lessee will need to apply the amendments
retrospectively to sale-and-leaseback transactions entered into or after the date of

initial application of IFRS 16 a
leaseback transactions entered

d will need to identify and re-examine sale-and-
into since impiementation of IFRS 16 in 2019, and

potentially restate those that ingluded variable lease payments. If an entity {a seller-

lessee) applies the amendments
for an earlier period, the entity s

L arising from Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
hall disclose that tact.

Sale or Contribution of Assets b?tween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

{Amendments to IFRS 10 and IA

S 28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control Eﬂ'\




Pakistan Microfinance Net

Notes to the Financial Statemen
For the year ended 31 December 20

The above amendments are not likel
statements.

3

31

work

is
22

of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less
frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained

interests in assets that are not b

usinesses. The effective date for these changes has

been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

The accounting policies as set out

v to have an impact on the Company’s financial

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES

below have been applied consistently to all periods

presented in these financial statements.

Operating fixed assets
Property and equipment

Owned

These are stated at cost (ess accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost

comprises of acquisition and other,

Depreciation is charged to income
of an asset is written off over its

directly attributable costs.

applying the straight-line method, whereby the cost
estimated useful life. The rates of depreciation are

stated in note 4.1 to the financial statements. Depreciation on assets is charged from

the date of acquisition till the date

Usetul lives are determined by t
assets, the expected physical weg
Jegal and similar limits on the use ¢

of disposal.

e management based on the expected usage of
r and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence,
of assets and other similar factors.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each financial year end. The effect of any adjustment to residual values,

useful lives and methods is rec
astimate,

bgnized prospectively as a change in accounting

The carrying values of property eind eqguipment are reviewed for impairment when
13

events or changes in circums

nces indicate the carrying values may not be

recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash generating units are written down to (\x

A\
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Notes to the Financial Statemen
For the year ended 371 December 202

2

ork

their recoverable amount. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the
carrying amount of the respective|item of property and equipment, with a corresponding
effect on the related depreciation charge and impairment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected|from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset, (cal¢uiated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amgunt of the asset), is included in the income and
expenditure statement, in the year the asset is derecognized.

Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income and expenditure
statement as and when incurred.

Right of use assets

The Company recognizes right-cfiuse assets at the {ease commencement date. Right-
of-use assets are inttially measurgd at cost, which comprises the initial amount of lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from
the iease commencement date tg the end of the iease term, unless the lease transfers

3.2

ownership of the underlying asset
of the right of use asset reflect t
that case the right of use asset wi

1o the Company by the end of lease term or the cost
hat the Company will exercise a purchase option. In
| be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying

asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In

addition, the right of use asset is j
adjusted for certain remeasureme

Intangible assets

veriodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
nt of lease liability.

These are stated at cost less acgumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Cost

comprises of acquisition and othe

Amortization is provided for by app
and disposals of intangible assets

directly aftributable costs.

lying the straight-line method. In respect of additions
miade during the year, amortization is charged 10 the

income and expenditure statement from the month of acquisition, and up to the month
preceding the disposal of such assets. The rate of amortization, which is disclosed in

note 5.1, is designed 1o write off th
lives.

e cost of intangible assets over the estimated useful

The carrying vatues of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment, when events or

changes in circumstances indicate
such indication exists, and where t
amounts, the assets or cash gen
amgounts. The recoverable amount
cost to sell and value in use. Any ¢

the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any
he carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
erating units are written down to their recoverable
of intangible assets is the greater of fair value less
hange in the estimates in the future might affect th;é\
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

i3

3.3.11nvestments in subsidiary

carrying amount of the'respective i
on the related amortization and im

Gains and losses on disposal of in

investments

tern of intangible assets, with a corresponding effect
bairment.

angible assets are charged to income,

All purchases and sale of investments are recognized using settlement date accounting
that is, the date on which investments are delivered to or by the Company. All

invesyments are derecognized wh
investments has expired or has §
substantially all the risks and rewa

Investments in subsidiary are initia
recoverable amounts are estimate

n the right to receive economic benefits from the
yeen transferred and the Company has transferred
ds of ownership.

ly recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting dates,
i to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any,

and carrying amounts of investmgnts are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are
recognized as expense in income and expenditure. Where impairment losses
subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are increased to their
revised recoverable amounts but|limited 10 the extent of initial cost of investrments.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the income and expendiiure.

Income and expenditure of subsidiary is carried torward in their financial statements and
not dealt within these financial statements except to the extent of dividend dectared by
the subsidiaries. Gain and losses op disposal of investments is included in other income.
When the disposat of investment|in subsidiary resulted in loss of control such that it
becomes an associate the retained investment is carried at fair value.

3.3.2 Investments in associates

Associates are entities in which the Company has significant influence but not control
over the financial and operating policies. Investments in associates are initially
recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting date, the recoverable amounts are
estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts
of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense
in the income and expenditure. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the
carrying amounts of the investmepts are increased to the revised recoverable amounts
but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment foss is
recognized in the income and expenditure.

The profits and losses of associates are carried forwarg in their financial statements and
not dealt within these financial stgtements except 1o the extent of dividend declared by
the associates and jointly controlled entities which are recognized in ¢ther income. Gains 1@
and losses on disposal of investrmient is included in other income, M
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3.4 Financial instruments

The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are originated.
Financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions pf the instrument.

3.4.1 Financial asset

Classification
On initial recognition, a financig
- amortized cost;
-~ fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

| asset is classified and measured at:

- fair value through profit or los
The classification of financiaf
financial asset is managed and

Amortized cost

A tinancial asset i1s measured
cenditions and is not designat
whose objective 1s 10 hold a
contractuai terms give rise on d
of principal and interest on the

s (FVTPL}.
hssets is based on the business model in which a
its contractual cash flow characteristics.

at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
bd as at FVTPL: ()} it is held within a business mode}
ssets 10 collect contractual cash flows; and (i) its
pecified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
principal amgount outstanding.

a) Fair value through other co

1prehensive income (FVOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVYOCI it it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL: (i) it is held within 3 business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash fiows and seliing financial
assets; and (i} its contractual ferms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an

quity investment that is not held for trading, the

Company may irrevocably elegt to present subsequent changes in the investment'’s

fair value in OCI. This election

is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

b) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified
above are measured at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at amortized
cost

as measured at amortized cost or FVQCI as described

Measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rmethod. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment
tosses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in income and
expenditure statement. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognized in income and expenditure

statement. w‘ ﬁ'&(“
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3.4.2

3.4.3

" De-recognition

Debt investments at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Equity investment at FVOC]

The Company derecognizes a fi
flows from the asset expire, or

'These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
interest income calculated using the effective interest
methed, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in income and expenditure
statement. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
OCI. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OC| are reclassified to income and expenditure
staternent.

Measured at fair value. Net gains and lossas, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognized in
income and expenditure statement.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognized as income in income and

"| expenditure statement unless the dividend clearly

represents a recovery of pari of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized
in OCt and are never reclassified to income and
expenditure siatement.

mancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
t transfers the rights 10 receive the contractual cash

flows in a transaction in which substantiatly all of the risks and rewards of ownership

of the financial asset are transfe

rred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially alt

of the risks and rewards of owngrship and does not retain control over the transterred
asset. Any interest in such deregognized tinancial assets that is created or retained by

the Company is recognized as a
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified

liability is classified as at FVTPL
it is designated as such on i

separate asset or liability.

as measured at amoriized cost or FVTPL. A financial
f it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
hitial recognition. Financiel liabilities at FVTPL are

measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are

recognized in income and ex

penditure staterment. Other financial liabilities are

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exghange gains and losses are recognized in income and

expenditure statement. Any gai
and expenditure statement.

The Company derecognizes a {
discharged or cancelled or ex
recognition of the financial as
expenditure statement for the p

Offsetting

h or loss on de-recognition is also included in income

inancial liability when its contractual obligations are
hire. Any gain / (loss) on the recognition and de-
sets and liabilities is included in the income and
eriod in which it arises.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has

3
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3.5

3.6

3.7

legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and intends either 10 settle them on a
net basis or 1o realize the asset gnd settle the liability simultaneously.

Lease liability

At the commencement date of

the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities

measured at the present value of iease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments inciude fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receiva
or a rate, and amounts expected

ble, variable lease payments that depend on an index
10 be paid under residual value guarantees.

The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably

certain 1o be exercised by the C

smpany and payments of penalties for terminating a

lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The

variable lease payments that do
expense in the period on whic
OCCUrS,

not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
h the event or condition that triggers the payment

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

It is remeasured when there ig

a change in future lease payments arising from a

change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the

amount expected to be payable

under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company

changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or

termination option. When the lea
adjustment is made to the carry
income and expenditure stateme
been reduced to zero.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions ere recognized wher
ohligation as a result of a past &
embodying economic benefits v
estimate can be made of the am
discounting the expected futur
market assessments of the time
The unwinding of the discount ig

Where it is not probable that an
will be required to settle the o
measured with sufficient reliabil

Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plans
The Company operates a defi

se tiability is remeasured in this way, a carresponding
ng amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in
nt if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has

Y the Company has a present legal or constructive
vent, and it is probable that an outflow of resources
vill be required to settle the obligation, and 2 reliable
ount of such obligation. Provisions are determined by
s cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
» value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
y recognized as finance cost, if any.

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

pligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
1y, it is disciosed as contingent liability.

hed contribution voluntary pension scheme for its

W

AR

permanent employees. Contrib{tions to the scheme are made by the Company and !'
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3.8

3.9

its employees, in accordance wit
employee contributions is 10%
scheme is fully funded and is
Investments Limited, on behalf g

n the employment contract. The rate of employer and
of the basic pay of permanent employees. The
being managed by MCB - Arif Habib Savings and
f each individual employee.

The Company has also entered into an arrangement with an insurance company, EFU

Life Insurance Limited (EFU), in s
employees, whereby the premiu
and charged to income. As per t

espect of a post-employment benefit scheme for its
m is paid annually to EFU in respect of the scheme
he scheme, EFU is required to pay, one gross salary

tor every year of service to permanent emplayees, upon completion of three years of

service.

Under the above-mentioned arrangements, the Company is only liable to pay the

agreed contributions / premiums

and EFU, and the liability towards

Investments Limited and EFU.
Taxation

The Company takes into accoun
appellate autharities. [nstances v
the income tax department at
considers that its view on item
amounts are shown as continge

The Company has been claimin
QOrdinance, 2001 (the Ordinancs
including minimum tax and fin
Ordinance. The credit is subject ]
100C, which also reguires recog

to MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
employees, rests with MCB - Arif Habib Savings and

1 the current income tax laws and decisions taken by
vhere the Company's view differs from that taken by
the assessment stage and where the Company
s of material nature is in accordance with law, the
nt liabilities.

g tax credit under section 100C of the Income Tax
) equal to one hundred percent of the tax payable,
5l tax payable, under any of the provisions of the
o compliance with certain conditions listed in section
nition as a non-profit organization (NPD). Previously

the Company obtained said rec
Rules 2002, required renewal a
Company was granted approval
Ordinance with a validity from
Commissioner Inland Revenue

gnition which owing to rule 214 of the Income Tax
er every three years. On 03 Septermber 2021, the
as an NPQO under section 2{36} of the Income Tax
01 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 from the
Islamabad accordingly no provision for taxation has

been recognized in these financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

These financial statements are

are recorded at the exchange

and translation
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's

tes approximating those ruling on the date of the

functional and presentatian cur%:ncy. Foreign currency transactions during the year

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the

rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing on the statement of financial

position date. Gains and losses on translation are taken to income currently. Non-

monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

translated using the exchange nates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Ncirm“
W
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monetary items measured at fair| value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair value was determined.

3.10 Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss
financial assets measured at

allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs} on
brortized cost, other than those due from the

Government of Pakistan entities. For receivables, the Company applies a2 simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit

risk, but instead recognizes a los
date. The Company has establis

5 allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
hed a provision matrix that is based on its historical

credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and

the econornic environment.

Lifetime ECLs are those that res

ult from all possible default events over the expected

iife of a financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at

amortized cost are credit impair
maore events that have detrimen
financial assets have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial as
the gross carrying amount of the
is written off when the Compa
financial asset in its entirety or
financial assets due from the Goy
10 apply the accounting policy as

Non-financial assets
The carrying values of non-finang

d. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
tal impact on the estimated future cash flows of the

sets measured at amortized cost are deducted from
assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
ny has no reasonable expectations of recovering a
a portion thereof. For recognition of impairment on
ernment of Pakistan entities, the Company continues
stated below.

W

ial assets are assessed at each statement of financial

position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such

indication exists, then the recove
An impairment loss is recogniz

rable amount of the non-financial assets is estimated.
ed 2s an expense in the income and expenditure

statement, for the amount by which the non-financial asset's carrying value exceeds w\"

its recoverable amount.

W
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3.11 Income recognition

Income related Grants
Grants, of a non-capital nature, rgceived for specific purposes, and any bank interest
earned on them, are classified as restricted grants. Subsequently, these are
recognized in the income and expenditure statement to the extent of expenditure
incurred against them which approximately corresponds to the satisfaction of related
performance obligations. Expenfiture incurred against grants, against which grant
funds have been committed blit not received, is recognized in the income and
expenditure statement and refle¢ted as a receivable from donors.

Deferred Grants

Deferred Capital Grants
Grants received for the purchage of fixed assets are initially recorded as deferred
income upon receipt. Subsequently, these are recognized in the income and
expenditure staterment, on a systematic basis, over the periods necessary to match
them with the carrying value of the related assets.

Assets received against which |no grant is received or no consideration is paid is
considered as non-monetary gfent and both the asset and the deferred grant is
recorded at fair value at the date| of receipt of non-monetary grant.

Government Grant — Loans at below market interest rates

Benefit of ioan obtained at below market interest rate under State Bank of Pakistan’s
salary refinance scheme is recagnized as 'deferred grant’. This is measured as the
difference between the fair valug of the loan on initial recognition and actual proceeds
received.

Subsequent to initial recognition, deferred grant is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement in ling with the recognition of related interest expenses and is
presented net of related interesy expenses.

Contracts with Customers

The following table provides |information about the nature and timing of the
satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers includin
significant payment terms, and the related revenue recegnition policies. “\a«“
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Nature and timing of satisfaction

international trainings to
participants of the member
organizations. The consideration is
-agreed at the time of receipt of
ngminations from member
organizations,

income comprises the invoiced
value for the delivery of trainings,
which is recognized over time as
the customers simultaneously
give and consume the benefits
provided by the Company’s
performance of delivery of

Company does not provide any
discounts for early settlement of
the invoices,

Tvoe of services of performance obligations, Revenue
P inciuding significant payment recognition
terms
Training income The Company delivers local and Revenue is

recognized cover time
1o the extent that
performance
obligations have been
satisfied.

Progress of
satisfaction of
performance
obligations is
determined by the
number of days in
which trainings have
been delivered
against to1al of
duration of trainings
in days.

Membership Fee

The Company receives annual
embership fees from
icrofinance institutions (MFIs) as
consideration for being members of
the Company and for provision of
centinuous support and
representation on different forums.

Income comprises the membership
fges for each category of members
a3 approved by the Board of the
Cpmpany.

Performance obligation regarding
embership fees is satisfied over
time as and when the MFls
simulianeously receive and
consume the benefiis provided by
the Company’s parformance of

Income is recognized
over time as and
when performance
obligation is satisfied.

Since Membership
fee is received for
twelve-month period
{January-December)
and services
rendered evenly
during the period
hence income is
recognized evenly
over the period of
twelve months.

w\\
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Type of services

Nature and timing of satisfaction

performance obligations,
including significant payment
tl%rms

Revenue
recognition

Invaices are usually payable in 30

"days. The Company does not

provide any discounts for early
settlement of the invoices. Further,
no refunds are offered.

Sponsorship
Income

The Company generates
sponsorship income from its Annual
icrofinance Confarence. As per
the agreed sponsorship packages,
the Company provides brand
vigibility to its members.

Income comprises the invoiced
value for the provision of the brand
visibility service, which is
récognized over time as the MFIs
ultaneously receive and

nsume the benefits provided by
the Company's performance of
brand visibility services.

Invoices are usually payable in 30
days. Other than the trade
discounts which are provided at the
time of negotiation of the rates, the
Company does ngt provide any
discounts for early settlement of
the invoices.

Revenue is
recognized over
time to the extent
that performance
obligations have
been satisfied.

Progress of
satisfaction of
performance
obligations is
determined by the
number of days in
which brand
visibility is provided
against total of
duration of the
Annual Microfinance
avent,

Research Studies
/ Consultancy
Income

The Company carries out research
studies for members and other
donor organizations. The
consideration is pre-agreed through
formal agreements and payment is
linked with the achievement of
ilestones,
Income comprises the inveiced
value for carrying out research
studies which is recognized at a
pgint in time as the Company
chieves the milestone agreed and
thereafter submits research
reports.

[+]

income is
recognized at &
point in time as and
when the
performance
obligation is
satisfied i.e. when
the Company has
achieved a pre-
agreed milestone
and submits
research reports.

el
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Type of services

terms

Nature and timing of satisfaction
of performance obligations, Revenue
including significant payment recognition

In
dd
pr
sd

voices are usually payable in 30
ys. The Company does not
ovide any discounts for early
ttlement of the invoices.

Profit on bank deposits and investments

Mark-up / interest on bank deposits and return on investments is recognized using

the effective interest rate methg
Other Income
Other income is recognized whe
Fair value measurement

Fair value' is the price that wol
liability in an orderly transaction b

d.

n the right to receive the same is established.

Id be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer &
etween market participants at the measurement date

in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the

Company has access at that
performance risk.

A number of the Company's
measurement of fair values, for

When one is availabie, the Com
the quoted price in an active mar

date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-

accounting policies and disclosures require the

both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

any measures the fair value of an instrument using
et for that instrument. A market is regarded as active

if transactions for the asset or ligbility take place with sufficient frequency and volume

to provide pricing information or

If there is no quoted price in 4
technigues that maximize the ug

an ongoing hasis.

n active market, then the Company uses valuation
e of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use

of unobservable inputs. The chogsen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors
that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

If an asset or & liability measured
Company measures assetls and
positions a1 an ask price.

at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the

long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short Lﬁ

¥
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3.13

3.14

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is
normaily the transaction price l— i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or
received. i the Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in
an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique
for which any unobservable inputs are judged 1o be insignificant in relation to the
measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted
to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction
price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate
basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly
supported by observable market|data or the transaction is ¢losed out.

Unrestricted funds

This represents a general fund af the Company, comprising of the surpius generated
from the Company’s operations, and is available for utilization for the day 1o day
operations of the Company.

Endowment fund

Endowment, amounting to Rs 60 million, was received in year 2013 from the Pakistan
Poverty Allevistion Fund [PPAF), under a Financing Agreement, dated September
2013. The endowment remained restricted for a period of three years, commencing
September 01, 2013, during which period, PPAF reserved the right to suspend or
terminate Holding Company's right to this endowment and the incorne thereon, under
specified circumstances.

The restriction period of three yaars, expired on 31 August 2016 and all the conditions
mentioned in the agreement were fully complied with by the Holding Company and
accordingly, the Holding Compahy transferred the endowment fund payable amount

to Endowment Fund reserve account. The fund is available for utilization for the day—w

to-day operations of the HoldingiCompany.
‘ y op g{Company ‘LM
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6.1

71

7.1

LONG TERM LOANS
Censidered good - unsecured

Loans to employees
Current portion shown under cur

Interest at the rate of 5% per annum (2021: 5%) is charged on the long-term loans extended to
employees. Management considers that, in context of overall financial statements, impact of
recognizing long term loans at pres

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Investments held at cost

In subsidiary company
Munsalik Digital {Private} Limited

In associated company
Aequitas Infermation Services Lim
Investment at cost
Less: Impairment loss

ork

2022 2021
Note Rupees
- 408,548
ent assets 9 - (163,104)
- 245,444

ent value of the future cash fiows, would be immaterial.

2022 2021
Note Rupees
7.1 271,458,801 271,458,801
ted
7.2 37,478,000 37,478,000

37,478,000 37,478,000

308,936,801 308,936,801

This represents invesment in 2,714,588 (2021: 2,714,588} fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

which represents 100% equity sha
up as a private limited company u
Digital Services Platform {"the Pla
April 2020 with Karandaaz Pakistan

res of Munsalik Digital {Private} Limited {"MDPL"). MDPL was set
der the Companies Act, 2017 to branch out the operations of the
form’} as required under the grant agreement entered into on 13
to finance the Platform.

2022 2021
Summary of investment in subsidiary made during Rupees
the year
Transfer of property and equipmen(t - 112,266,036
Transfer of intangible asset - 77,081,830
Consideration paid in cash - 82,111,135
- 271,458,801

W
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7.2

This represents 3,419,763 {2021
Services Limited (AISL) acquire

3,419,763 fully paid ordinary shares of Aequitas Information
on 23 May 2019 which represents 6.65% {2021: 6.65%)

shareholding in AISL. AISL was |incorporated in Pakistan on 25 May 2016 as a Public Limited
Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 {Now Companies Act, 2017}. The main

objectives of AISL is to carry out

he business of a Credit Information Company for collecting credit

information as permissible by law relating to debtors of banks, financial Institutions, non—banking

financial Institutions, non-financia

companies and other lenders or authorities Including retailers,

insurance companigs, utility proviiers and also to collect and maintain any credit information, with

respect 1o individuals, partners

ips, corporations, Institutions, trusts, estates, cooperatives,

associations, Government or Govyernmental subdivisions or agencies or any other entity. On 20

January 2020, one of the Compa
Company has determined that it
meaningful representation on its b
accordance with the requirements
Investments In Associates’

ny's nominee director was appointed on the board of AISL. The
is able 1o exert significant influence on AISL because it has
oard. Accordingly, this Investment has been accounted at cost in
of International Accounting Standard 28, (JAS 28) 'Accounting for

fnAb

4%
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9.1 This includes advances to Chiet Execu
Nil) and Rs. 1,165,830 (2021; 750,00
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Ch
1.559,7B4 and Rs. 527,914 respective

2022 2021
Nate = = -eeeeeeee Rupeeasg----=------
8 CONSULTANCY FEES RECEIVABLE
Unsecured - Considered good
Ghana Microfinance Institutions Netwark (GHAMFIN) 5,840,000 4,420,000
World Bank 21,655 21,65%
International Labor QOffice 1,684,988 -
7.546,643 4,441,655
Less: Allowance for impairment {3,701,113) {2,340,823}
3.845,630 2,100,832
8.1 Movement of ailowance for impairmant
is as follows:
Balance as at January 01 2,340,823 1,807,845
Net rameasurement expected credit loss allowance 1,360,290 432,978
3,701,113 2,340,823
g LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans - unsecured considered good
Current portion of long term loans 6 - 163,104
Advances - unsecured considered good
1o employees 8.1 3,482,908 897,743
1o consultants 8,428,276 2,128,276
9.2 11,911,184 3,026,019
11,811,184 3,189,123

ive Officar and Chief Financial Officer amounting to Rs. 2,100,000 {2021:
D). The maxmum aggregate amount outstanding from Chief Executive
ef Operating Officer at any time during the year was Rs, 3,000,000, Rs.
v. Provision for doubtful advance and aging are not disclosed as advance

is not past due or impaired as at the rerorting date.

9.1.1 Movemant of advance to Chief Execuf]
is as follows:

Balance as at January i
Dishursements
Repayments

9.1.2 Advance to Chief Executive Officer (]
3,188,500).

9.2 Advances are interest free, and are dug on demand. 4\

2022 2021
Note Rupaees
ve Officer
9.1.2 4,700,000 3,188,500
{2,600,000) {3,188,500}
2.100,000 -

EQ) issued for parsonal purposes amounted 10 Rs. 4,200,000 (2021: Rs.

6\
A
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1

1.5

DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits
Short term prepaymaents

Employee benefits / Insurance
Cthers

TRAINING AND OTHER RECEIVABL|

Membership fees

Training fees

Sponsorship fees

institutional contributions

Facilitation fees

Invastor linkages fee

Social audit fee

Receivable from South Asia
Micro-enirepreneurs Network

Others

Less: Allowance for impairment

This respresent amount receivable |
share of inguiry fee against credit bur
agreement.

This represents receivable from Sg
microfinance indusiry associzlion req
support to SAMN snd as part of thi

2022 2021
Note - —Rupgeas-—-swe
1,271,004 1,271,004

1,281,279 2,582,659
484,388 674,168

1,765,667 3,256,727

3,036,671 4,527,731
ES

3,028,700 2,666,700
886,347 731,347
3,600,040 4,450,040

24 1 5,000,000 .
1.1 5,770,042 7,374,877
250,000 250,000
- 250,000
112 11,165,371 9,183,493
11.3 8,032,175 9,018,653
37732676 33,926,110
11.4 (6,547,311} {3,947,341)

31,185,364 29,977,789

om Aequitas Information Services Limiied, an associated company, as
pay Inquines made during the year under the cooperation and investment

uth Asiz Micro-entrepreneurs Network (SAMN), which is a regional
istered in Sri Lanka. The Company provides operational and secretarial
supporl, Company makes payments and receives funds on behalf of

SAMN. As per an understanding reachied between the Company and members of SAMN, this receivable will be
settled by SAMN through contributiens from its respective members and receipts from SAMN cenfsrence

which was held in Dubai during the v

This includes amounts receivable frg
refundable tax due from government.

F.

bm Pakistan Fintech Network, sales tax receivable from members and

2022 2021
assseeeem-RUpBOS---rr-r -
Movament of allowance for impairment
15 85 follows:
Balance as at 01 January 3,947,341 4,064,218
Receivables written-off during the year 2,599,970 (116,877}
Net remeasurement of expected cred|t loss allowance 6,547,311 3,047,341

Training and other receivables inclupe following receivables from associated companies. Aging for these
receivables have been disclosed in noje 37.1.1 to the financial staterments. 4“

i
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2022 2021

Maximum Balance as at  Bzlance as at
aggregate 31 December 37 December

amount 2022 2021
Membership fees
AGAHE 150,000 150,000 150,000
Training fees -
Akhuwat islamic Microfinance Company 72,713 72,713 7213
Mobilink Microfinance Bank Limitgd 125,000 125,000 90.00C
National Rural Support Programme 80,000 80,000 80,000
Aequitas Information Services 218,139 218,129 218,139
495,852 495,852 460,852
Facilitation Fee
Aequitas Information Services Limjted 7,374,877 5,770,042 7,374,877
7,374,877 5,770,042 7,374.877
Investor Linkage Fee
AGAHE 250,000 250,000 250,000
250,000 250,000 250,000
Social Audit Fee
HBL Microfinance Bank Limited 250,000 - 250,000
250,000 - 250,000

8,370,729 6,515,894 8,335,728 g*
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12.1

12.2

13

13.1

14

4.9

14.2

15

15.1

‘Deferred capital grant

RECEIVABLE FROM SUBSIDIARY

Resource sharing
Cthers

Thus represents staff and other office
company, as per the resource shari
agreement, the Company will share 3
with the subsidiary company at cost.

This represents payments made on bd

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Amortised cost
Term Deposit Receipts

2022 2021

Note @~ ~-meeeem- Rupees----—-—-
121 24,011,121 12,202,744
12.2 33,379,852 18,605,449
57,390,973 30,808,193

related costs allocated to Munsalik Digital (Private} Limited, a subsidiary
g agreemnent entered on 20 January 2021, As.per the terms of the
dministrative staff and operational resources, including office premises,

Note

131

half of Munsalik Digital {Private) Limited to different vendors.

10,000,000

22,003,000

This represents term deposit receipt tTDR) of SAMBA Bank Limited carrying interest at rate of 11.27% (2021.
7% per annum respectively. TOR of SAMBA Bank Limited amounting 1o Rs. 10 millien is held &s a collateral

ageinst the running finance facility.

BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks in local currency

Savings accounts
Current accounts

Savings accounts carry mark up at rate

Note

14.1

2022 2021
Rupees
2,420,699 3,185,124
56,580 870,587
2.477,278 4,065,711

s ranging between 6% 10 7% (2021: 6% 10 7%) per annum.

Bank batances include balences in saving account of Khushhali Microfinance Bank Limited of Rs. 44,336 {2021
Rs. 41,781 and balances in current agcounts of U Microfinance Bank Limited of Rs. 56,580 (2021: Rs. 56,580

raspeciively.

DEFERRED GRANTS

Deferred income - Government Grant

Less: current partion shown under curfent liability

Deferred capital grant

Balance as at January 01

Grants for the year relating 1o:
Property and equipment

Transfers 1o the income and expendity
Amortization for the year

re statement;

Property and equipment disposed off during the year

Note

15.1
16.1

19

22

2022 2021
Aupees
552,679 2,046,099
- 229,202
552,679 2,275,301
(540,717) (944,673)
11,962 1,330,628
2,046,099 3,664,801
{1,493,4201" {1,618,702)
{1,493,420) (1,618,702)
552,679

2.046:1033%9
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2022 2021
Note Rupees:
16 LONG TERM LOAN

Secured

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,835,049 21,090,680
Accrued mark up 351,951 1,260,792
Repayment made during the year (11,187,000} {11,616,433)
Baiance at the end of the year - 10,835,049
Less: current poriion shown under curent liability - {10,303,903}

- £31.146 .

Below is detail of amount recognized a$ deferred grant for the impact of below market interest rate on

the loan.
2022 2021
MNote Rupeeas
16.1 Deferred income -~ Government Grant
Balance at the beginning of the year 229,202 1,037,808
Grant recognised on loan at below market interest rate - -
Grant amortized during the year (229,202} {808,606}
- 229,202
17 LEASE LIABILITY
Balance as at 01 January 7,643,648 11,692,254
Leases recognized during the year - -
Finance cost on lease liabifities 33 1,143,490 1,688,367
Payments made during the year {4,454,591) i5,736,973)
. 4,332,547 7,643,648
Less: current portion shown under cufrent liability {4,332,547) {3,235,842)
17.1 - 4,407,806

17.1 This represents lease liability for Company's office premises. Lease term of these premises has been
determined to be five years based on cgnsideraticn of the terms of the agreement and other factors, L\“‘
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17.2

18

19

20

20.1

21

21.2

Contractual maturity of remaining ledse commitments

Within one year
Betweaen 2 and 4 years
Total un-discounted lease commitments

This represents running finance facility
year 2022 acquired this Running Financ

requirements. As they repaid in full the Balary and Wages loan during the year and had

already invested Rs 10 Million in a TDR.
facility with Samba Bank by placing the
DEFERRED GRANTS
Deterred capital grant

ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses

Accounts payable

Withheld income tax payable
Withheld sales tax pavabie

Payable to employees' voluntary pension scheme

Other liabilities

This includes balances payable to
{ollowing associated company:

HBL MicroFinanceBank Limited

2022 2027
Note Rupees
4,900,050 4,454,591
- 4,900,050
4,900,050 9,354 641
om SAMBA Bank Limited. PMN during the
Facility to meet the working capital
They decided to set up a running finance
TDR under lien.
15 540,717 944,673
540,717 944,673
1,565,004 1,199,998
16,483,249 9,271,186
6,484,136 237,325
2,431,735 1,489.117
186,074 128,886
20.1 271,308 271,668
27,421,506 12,608,160
250,000 250,000

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMERNTS

Contingencies

The Company does not have any contingencies as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil),

Commitments

The Company does not have any commjtments as at 31 December 2022 {20217: Nil).

W

@



Pakistan Microfinance Network

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
22 GRANT INCOME Note Rupees
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
- NFI5 Technical Assistance for Sub-committees - 3.353,670
Karandaaz Pakistan
- Digital Services Ptattorm - 10,250,718
- 13,604,388
Amortization of deferred grant - 225,878,583
Amortization of deferred capital grarnt 16.3 1,493,420 1,618,702

1,493,420 241,101,673

23 MEMBERS’ CONTRIBUTIONS
Merbership fee , 231 18,425,000 18,760,000

23.1 Membership tees have been further disgggregated as from:

Micrefinance Banks 5,500,000 6,100,000
Non-Banking Microfinance Institutions 12,925,000 12,660,000

18,425,000 18,760,000

29 INSTITUTIONAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Habib Bank Limited {HBL) 5,000,000 10,000,000
HBL Microfinance Bank 5,000,000 -
Pak Oman Microfinance Bank Limited 500,000 -
DAMEN Support Programme 625,000 -
Mobilink Microfinance Bank 500,000 ) -
National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) - 8,000,000
Bank af Punjab (BOP) - 5,000,000
Bank Alfaiah Limited {BAL} - 3,000,000

11,625,000 26,000,000

241 These contributions were made by gommercial and microfinance banks under the strategic and
institutionai partnership arrangement with the Company to identify and explore avenues for the purpose
of promoting Financial inclusion in Pakistan. The contribution was given far the annual event of the
Company titled "Annual Microfinance Cgnference (AMC)" held in October 2022,

2022 2023

25 INCOME FROM TRAININGS Note - Rupees------- ——
Training Income - gross 9,038,890 -
Less: Trade discount - -
Less: Sales Tax {1,513,318) -

Training income - net 251 7,525,572 - W .
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25.1

26

27

274

28

29

2022 2021
Training income has been further disegaregated Rupees
into the following categories
Microfinance Banks 140,000 -
Non-Banking Microfinance Institution 2,722 572 -
Non mernber organizations 4,663,000 -
7,525,572 -
INCOME FROM RESEARCH
PROJECTS / CONSULTANCY
international Labor Office 4,858,613 -
Foreign, Comrmonwealth and Developrment Office (FCDO) - 7,487.884
Microfinance Opportunities (MFO) 1,273,519 4,143,360

INCOME FROM SPONSORSHIPS

on account of various conferences on

This represents the income received as
Sponsorship mcome has been disaggrej‘

Spensoership ingome - gross
Less: Sales Tax
Sponsorship Income - net

6,132,132 11,631,244

sponsorships from various donors, organizations and members
icrofinance innovation and growth conducted by the Company.

ated into the following categories.

Note --o-eered Rupees-—--—-

18,048,327 14,507,000
(2,283,500} 12,000,866)

Sponsorship income has been further dipaggregated

into the following categaries

Microfinance Banks
Non-Banking Microfinance Institution
Non member organisations

FACILITATION FEE INCOME

This represents income earned by the
entered into with a private credit bure

271 15,764,827 12.506,034
4,250,000 3,250,000
2,150,000 4,256,034
9,364,827 5.000,000

15,764,827 12,508,034

Company under the Cocperation and Investment agreement
, Aequitas Information Services Limited (AISL), an associated

Company. As per the terms of the Cooperation and Investment agreement, the Company earmns

facilitation fee as share of inquiry fee ag
from AISL.

OTHER INCOME

Income from non-financial assets

Liabilities written off during the year
Socia! audit
Others

inst credit bureau inquiries made by members of the Company

2022 2021

Rup

- 500,000
5,492,113 997,924
5,492,113 1,497,924 &6“

TOu
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30 GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Salaries and benefits

" Events / conferences / meetings
Rent and utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Legat and professional
Travel
Auditars' remuneration
Oftfice supplies
Designing and printing
QOffice maintenance
Insurance
Entertainment
Other expenses
Bank charges

30.1 The Company has charged governance
12.20 million} as per the resource shari
company.

30.2 Auditors' remueneration include the follow

Audit fea
Other non audit sarvices
Out of pocket expense

N PROGRAMME COSTS

Salaries and benefits

Consultant cost

Events / conferences / meetings
Per diem and other allowances
Rent ang utilities

International memberships
Other expenses

ing:

2922 2021
Note Rupees

9,032,177 14,075,848
1,152,645 551,225
632,311 616,130
5,548,228 6,004,860
3,144,608 3,021,328
1,028,262 1,057,932
30.2 1,360,000 1,238,500
582,360 750,482
200,000 475,680
652,900 508,177
738,442 998,030
465,119 439,776
1,866,280 1,724,518
381,040 155,632
26,885,403 31,618,116

nd management expense amounting Rs. 14.60 million {2021: Rs.
g agreement to Munsalik Digital {Private} Limited, the susidiary

2022 2021
Rupees

1,320,000 1,200,000
40,000 38,500
1,360,060 1,238,500
20,748,457 27,990,623
1,742,460 20,971,908
11,570,582 10,636,977
4,788,172 1,614,089
- 25,200
448,375 282,331
308,787 843,915
39,606,840 62,265,010

A

e



Pakistan Microfinance Network

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

32

33

34

34.1

342

35

FINANCE INCOME
Income from financial agssets

Profit on savings accounts
Interest income on loans to employees
Interest income on investments

FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on:
Long-term loans
Runnining finance facility
Lease lizbilty

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The aggregate amounts charged in the fi
Chief Executive Officer and executives ang

2021 2021

----- Rupees--—----r-v
406,043 1,014,803
9,379 18.581
1,265,132 2,091,736
1,670,554 3,125,120
122,746 452,186

245,006 -

1,143,480 1,688,367
1,511,242 2,140,553

OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

nancial statements for remuneration, including benefits, to the
as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Executives
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note el 3 (1] =TT LSt Rupees

Managerial remuneration 34.1 7,843,848 9,507,700 12,785,006 12,959,296
Beonus for the year 2,614,618 2,376,927 - 1,320,626
Pension fund scheme - - 124,500 257 447
Contribution for gratuity 571,204 1,835,182 668,779 1,465,848
Reimbursements 121,012 120,743 200,755 339.891
Other benelits 34.2 53,910 34,415 125,567 122,643

11,204,592 13,874,977 13,914,607 16,465,645
Number of personis} 1 1 3 4

No remuneration was paic to the Company's directors in the current and previous year.

This represents payment for leave encaghment, health insurance and contribution to Employees Old Age
Benefits Institution, This also includes vehicle allowance of Chief Executive Officer.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ANI
r

The related parties of the Company com
entities under common directorship.

Balances with related parties have been
related parties are as follows:

BALANCES

ise of wholly owned subsidiary, key management personnel and

disclosed in note 9, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 2{. Transactions with

e
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2022 2021
35.1 Transactions during the year: Rupees
Transactions with assggiated companies
Training fee income 1,152,000 -
Membership and registration fae incgme 6,500,000 6,400,000
Sponsorship fee income 5,375,000 4,750,000
Faciiitation fee income 11,978,763 19,374,877
Social audit fee income - 500,000
Interest income earnad on TDRs - 2,091,736
Markup income - -
Other income 1,214,888 -
Property and equipment transferred 1o MDPL - 112,266,036
tntangible assers transferred toc MDRBL - 77,081,630
Payment against issus of sheares - 82.111,135
Gthers:
Remunsration 1o key management personnel 17,027,604 18,605,420
Payments made on behalf of the Company by
key management personngl - -
35.2 Following are the associated companies and related parties with whom the Company had entered into
rransactions during the year:
: Basis of Number of Agoiraeg: «
Associated Companies . . shares held in g ..
Retationship the Compan shareholding in
pany the Company
. . Commaon
U Microfinance Bank Limited directorship N/A NJA
Telenor Micrgfinance Bank Limited Qommor‘! N/A N/A
directorship
First Microfinance Bank Limited Common N/A N/A
directorship
Knushhati Microfinance Bank Limited Common N/A N/A
: directorship
Mobilink Microfinance Bank Limited Common N/A N/A
directorship
, Common
National Rural Support Programme directorship NfA N/A
SAFCO Support Foundation Common /A N/A
directorship
. Common
Kashf Foundation directorship N/A N/A
Ruraf Community Development Programme .Common. NfA N/A
directorship
Akhuwat [slamic Microfinance Company ;ommoq N/A N/A
directorship
AGAHE Pakistan Common N/A N/A
directorship
Aequitas information Services Limited Comman N/A

directorship
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: Basis of Number of Agg':g: N
Related Parties >S9 shares held in °Ag8
Relationship the Compan shareholding in
pany the Company

. Chief Executive

S\,_(ed Mohsin Ahmed Officer N/A N/A

Ali Basharat Chief Cperating N/A N/A

Officer

Chief Financial

Muhammad Wagas Khan Officer N/A NFA
N . Wholly owned

Munsaiik Digital (Private) Limited subididary N/A N/A

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Fair valug is the amount that would be

orderly transaction between market part
arise between carrying values and fair
presumption that the entity is 2 going co
scale of its operations or 10 undertake a 4

eceived on sale of an asset or paid on transier of a kiability in an
cipants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can
value estimatas. Underlying the definition of fair value is the
hcern without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the
ransaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on

the guoted market prices at the close of

trading on the period end date. The quoted market prices used for

financial assels held by the institute is cyrrent bid price. A financia! instrument is regarded as quoted in an

active market if guoted prices are readily
group, pricing service, or regulatory ag

and regularly avsilable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
Ency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring

market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurements' req
value hierarchy that reflects the signifi
value hierarchy has the following levels:

ires the Company to classify fair value measuremants using a fair
ance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices includ
directly {that is, as prices) or indirectly {1

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not basad on observable market data {that is, unobservable input

{levei 3).

d within level 1 that are observable for the asset or fiability, either
at is, derived from prices} (level 2).

1)

it
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37

3214

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the Tollowing risks frgm its use o financial instrumenis:

- Credit risk;
- Liguidity risk; and
- Markel risk.

This note pressnts miormation about the Company's exposure to each ol the above risks, the Company’s chjectives,
policies and processes for measuring and mandging risk, and the Company’s management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout thebe financial statemsnts.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibilify for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies through
risk committee of the Board.

Credit risk

Credit nisk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if 8 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally ifom the Company’s all receivables, investmenis lexcluding equity
invesiments} ang bank balances.

The cartying smeounts of financial assets represent the maximum credil exposure. ‘impairment loss on linancial assets’
recagnized in income and expenditure account amounts tc As. 3.96 milon (2021 0.32 million) and relates 10
consultancy, and traimng and other receivables.

The maximum exposwye 1o credit nsk al the reporuing date was:

2022 2021

Note eemeeeeees Rupegsg-=++sevee-
Long Term Loans =] - 408,548
Consultancy fees receivable 8 3,845,530 2,100,832
Trairning and other recewvables n 31,185,364 29,977,768
Racewabta from subsidary 12 57,190,973 30,808,193
Short term invesiments 13 10,600,000 22,003,001
Bznk balances 14 2A77.278 4,055,211
104,839,145 §9.354,053

Consultancy, Grant, Training and other receivabl

Tne Company's exposure to credit nisk is influenced mainly by the individual characieristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the factors thal may mfluenca the credit risk of ts  customer base. Geographically thera is
na concenlration of credit nsk.

Company's receivables mainly arise from its memers and donors. Maximum of the Company's mermbers have been
transacting with the Company for many years and none of these members’ balances have been writien off or are credit-
impaired 2t the reporting date. The Company attempts to conirol the credit risk by monitaring credit exposures, limiting
transactions with specific parties and continuing assessment of cradit worthiness of these parties, As part of these
processes the Tinanciel viability of all counerperies s regularly monitored and assessed. ‘Ap “

P
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The maximum exposure 1o credit risk lor financial agsets at the reporting date by type of counter party was:

2022 2021

----- —Rupees -
Agsociated companies §,540,854 8,145,729
Banks - Associated companes 125,600 438,361
Banks - other than Associated Companies 2,376,363 3,957,350
Others 95,356,888 76.812,613
104,899,145 89,354,053

The aging of receivables from asscciated companies

and provision there against at the reporting date was as {ollows:

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
2022 2022 2021 2021
sovapumrasrannsac - R PRBG- oo
Not yet due 5,770,042 16,389 7374877 -
Fast due 1B0-365 days . - 100,000 43,494
Cver 365 days 520,852 510,75% 870,862 29,778
6,390,894 527,148 8,145,729 335,272

Expected credit loss assessment as at 31 Deceml

The Company ailocates each exposure 1o 8 credit
tngluding but not imied 10 axtarnal ratings, avdite
and available press inlormation about custcmers)
using qualiative and quantitative faclors that are in
dedinition [rom agencies (Rating agencies Pakistan (]

Exposure within each credil risk are segmented by

ber 2022

rsk based on data that 15 deterrmned to be predictive ol the loss
H financial staternents, management accounts, cash flow projection
and appiying expenenced cradit judgment. Credit risk are defined
picative of the nsk ol default and are atigned to external credit rating
redit Rating Agency {PACRA) and JCR - VIS,

type of recewables like consultancy, grant and others and an ECL

rate is calculated for each segment based on delinguency status and actual credit loss expenence over the past 4 years.

These ratas are muluplied by scalar factors 1o refl
over which the historical data has been collected,
over the expected hves of the recaivabiles.

Scalar {eclors are based on GDP forecast, unempioy

ket the dilference between ecenomic conditions during the period
rurrent conditions and the Company's view of economic conditicns

ment fale and exchange rate which are as follows.

Years GDP Forecast Unemployme Exchange rate
nt Rate

2022 5.97 23 2257

2021 390 772 171.80

2021 040 4.50 159.80

2019 310 6.30 150.00

2018 5.83 6.00 121.82

The Compeany uses an allowsnce matnx to measurl
smiall balances.

Loss rates are caiculated using ‘ol rate” methg
successive stages of delinquency to galeuldte the
exposure in dillerant segments based on following
relationship.

The following table prowides information about the ¢

b the ECLs of receivables, which comprises a very large number of

id based on the probability ol a recewable progressive through
beighied average loss rate. Roll rates are calculated separataty for
common characteristics - geographic region and ape of customer

sxposure 16 credit risk and ECL for Trainmg and other receivables as

at 31 Decernber 2022 and 31 Dacember 2021, excldding recevable from South Asia Micro-entrepreneurs Network.

Weighted Gross carrying Loss Crodit
average loss amount allowance Impaired
31 December 2022
rate
% Rup
Current 0.01% 5,141,848 629 No
0-60 days past dug 0.22% 1,063,812 2,317 No
61-90 days past due 0.56% 8,217,045 48,139 No
91-150 days past due 0.0% - - No
151 days and above 74.2% 8,757,285 6498226 Na
23,179,900 6,547,311

i
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31 December 2021

Current 0.00% B8.013.775 128 No
0-60 days past due 0.04% 1,700,000 687 No
61-90 days past due 0.0% - - No
91-150 days past due 0.0% - - No
151 days and ahove 26.3% 15,027 841 3,846,518 No

24,141,616 3.947.333

The following table provides intormation about the gxposure to credit risk and ECL for consultancy lee receivables as at
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,

Weighted Gross carrying Loss . Credit
21 December 2022 average loss amount allowance impaired
rate
Current 0.0% 1,420,000 426 No
0-150 days pasi due 0.0% 1,684,988 508 - No
151 days and abgve 83.3% 4,441,655 3,700,182 No

7,546,643 3,701,113

31 December 2021

Current 0.0% 422,500 - Mo
0-150C days past due 0.0% - . No
1517 days and abave 58.2% 4,019.185 2,340,823 Na

4,441,655 2,340.823

As gar expecied credt 1058 agsessment no provisign (s requirgéd to be recognized against grant recevables.

Grants Receivable

The grams received during the year from State Bink of Pakistan and Karandgzaz were the under Financial Inclusion
Program IFIP}). The Company considars that the grdnt receivable has low cradit risk based on the assumption that the
contractual arrangemants for funding are with govemmenl enliligs.

Long Term Loans

Long lerm loans given to permanent amployees of the Company are secured against the post-retirement benefits such
as gratuity fund and provident {und. Accardingly, the Company considers long 1erm Ioans 10 have the low credit risk. [ Qr\

A




Pakistan Microfinance Network
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2022

3712

Investments

The Company held investments of Rs. 10 million as
hetd with the banks which are rated Al to A1+ basex

Impairmant on investments has been measured on
exposures. The Company considers that its invest
counterparties.

Cash at Bank

The Compazny held cash at bank of Rs. 2,477,278
held with the banks which are rated Al+ to AAA ba

Impairment on cash at bank has been measured on
exposures. The Company considers that its cash 2
counierparties.

Liguidity Risk

Liquichty risk is the nsk that the Company will net
hquidity risk menagement implies maintainmg sulic
adequate amouni of committed credit facilities and t
business. The Company's approach 10 managmg

at 31 December 2022 (2021: Rs. 22 million). These investments are
{ on JCR - VIS ratings.

2 month expected loss basis and reflect the short maturities of the
ments have low credit risk based on axternal credit rating of the

at 31 December 2022 {2021: Rs. 4,055,711). These balances are
d on PACAA and JCR - VIS ratings. .

2 month expetted loss basis and rellect the shorl maturities of the
1 bank have low credit risk based on external credit rating of the

be able 1o mest its financial obliganons as they {all due. Frudent
ent cash and marketable securities, the availability ol funding to an
he ability 1o close out market positions due 10 dynamic nature of the
\quigity 15 to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when dug, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incutring
unaccepiable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation, The maturity profile ol the Company's financial
liahilities based on the contractual amount is as follows:

31 Decemebr 2022

2022 Carrying Contracual Up to one Two to three Fout to five
amount rash flows yoar years years
Accrued Exepnse 1,565,604 {1,565,004} {1,565,004) . .
Accounts Payable 16,483,249 (16,483,248}  [16,483.249) - -
Payable to employees’
voluntary pansion scheme 186,074 {186,074} {186,074) . .
Other Liabilities 271,308 (271,308} {271,308) - .
Runmng finance facility 4,901,265 (8,801,265} {8.901,265) - -
Lease liability 4,332,547 {4,332,547) [4,332,547) - .
31,739,447 {31,739,447) [31,739,447) - .
2021
Accrued Exepnse 1,199,988 (1,195,998} {1,199,958) . -
Accounts Payable 9,271,166 (9.271.168) (9,271,166} - -
Payable to employees'
volunlary pension sgcheme 128,886 {128,886) {128,886} - -
Other Liabillities 271,668 {271,668} {271,668} - -
Leng Tarm Loan 10,835,048 10,835,042y (10,835,049} - .
Lease lizbility 7,643,648 19,354,641) {4.454,591) {4.800,060)
29,350,415 {31.061.408) (26,161,358} {4.800,050)

o
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37.1.3 Market risk

bl

¢

38

" A 1% strengthening of the funchonal currency agains

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rales, interest rates and equity prices will

affact the Company's income or the value of its
managemen is 1o manage and control market risk ex
on risk.

Currancy risk

holdings of financial instruments. The cbjective of market risk
posures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return

The Psk Rupee is the luncticnal currency of the Cofmpany and as a resuit currency exposures arise from transactions
and bslances in cuirencies other than the Pak Rupeg. The Company is exposed to currency risk from consultancy fee

receivable as follows:
’ 2022

2021

Rupees

Consultancy ee receiveble 5,840,000

uUsD Rupees yst
25,000 4,420,000 25,000

The following significant exchange rales were applied

during the year:

Statement of Financial Position

Average rgtes date rata
2022 2021 2022 2021
US Dollars 205.20 168.35 233.60 176.80
Sensitivity Analysis

1 USD as a1t 31 December 2022 would have decreased surpius by

Rs. 58,400 (2021: Rs. 44,200}, A 1% weakening of the luncuonal currency against USD as at 31 December 2021 would

have had the equa! but opposie effect of these amou

Interast rate risk

The mterast rate risk 1s the nsk that the value of finan
rales, At the reporing date, the Company's interest
accounts, l0ans and advances and short term investr

The Company does not account for any fixed rate

nts. The analysis assumes that all other varisbies remain constant.

cial instrument will tluctuste due 1o changes in the market interest
bearing {inancial instruments comprise of cash atl bank in savings
ents carrying lixed interest rates.

mancial assels ang labilities at fair value through profil or loss.

Therefore a change in nterast rates at the reporting date would not atect prolit or loss.

Other market price risk

Price risk is the risk that the {air value or future cash
market prices lothet than those arising from interest
factors specific to the individial financial instrument]
traded in the market.

At the year end the Company is not exposed to pric
future cash flows will luctuate because of changes in

CAPITAL RISK MANAGENENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital is
so that it ¢can achigve its prirmary objectives, provide b

lows of @ financial instrument will ‘uctuate because of changas in
rate risk of currancy nsk), wheiher those changes are caused by
or #ts issuer, or factors affecting all similar financiai instruments

y risk since there are no financial instruments whose (air valug or
market prices,

o saleguard the Company’s ability to conbnue as 8 going concern
bnefils {or other stakeholders and to maimain a strong capial base

1o suppart 1he sustained development of its businesses in line with the objects of the Company. “

R
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39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2022 2021
(Number) (Number)
Number of employees of the Company at the
reporting date 11 11
Average number of employees during the year 11 13

40 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise¢ of bank balances amounting to Rs. 4,055,711 (2021: Rs.
32,234370) for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

41 GENERAL
The amounts presented in these financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest Pak
Rupee, unless otherwise stated. |

42 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION
These financial statements were aplyroved by the Board of Directors of the Company in 1he!rﬂ(ﬁ}‘

meeting held on e | ; \{‘

* CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ‘ B DIRECTOR







